ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
May 2, 2007
1:11 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Representative Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Vic Kohring
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 121(L&C)

"An Act relating to discharge from small comrercial passenger
vessels; relating to information-gathering requirenents for
smal |l comercial passenger vessels; providing for an effective
date by repealing the delayed effective date found in sec. 16,
ch. 153, SLA 2004; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSSB 121(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 128

"An Act relating to allowable |ease expenditures for the purpose
of determning the production tax value of oil and gas for the
pur poses of the oil and gas production tax; and providing for an
effective date.”

- FAILED TO MOVE QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 15
"An Act relating to participation in matters before the Board of
Fisheries by nenbers of the board; and providing for an
effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- May 2, 2007



BILL: SB 121

SHORT TITLE: CRUI SE SH P DI SCHARGE & | NFO

SPONSOR( s) :

03/ 14/ 07
03/ 14/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 20/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 22/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 04/ 07
04/ 05/ 07
04/ 05/ 07
05/ 02/ 07

BILL: HB 128

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(s) SENATOR ELTON

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
L&C

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

Heard & Held

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

Moved CSSB 121(L&C) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( L&C)

L&C RPT CS 2DP 3NR NEW Tl TLE
DP: ELLIS, DAVIS

NR: BUNDE, STEVENS, HOFFMVAN
TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON:  CSSB 121(L&C)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
RES, JUD

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

SHORT TITLE: O L & GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX: EXPENDI TURES

SPONSOR( S)

02/ 12/ 07
02/ 12/ 07
02/ 22/ 07
02/ 22/ 07
02/ 22/ 07
03/ 01/ 07
03/ 01/ 07
03/ 01/ 07
03/ 05/ 07
03/ 05/ 07
03/ 05/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 19/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 21/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 23/ 07
03/ 26/ 07

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

IIIIITTITITIITITIIIIZ

REPRESENTATI VE(s) OLSON

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
&G RES, FIN

O&G AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( O&G)

O&G AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
Moved CSHB 128(0&G CQut of Conmmittee
M NUTE( O&G)

&G RPT CS(0&G 3DP 1INR
DP: DOOGAN, RAMRAS, COLSON
NR: SAMUELS

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( RES)

RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

- 2- May 2, 2007



03/ 26/ 07 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 28/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 28/ 07 (H) Heard & Hel d; Assigned to Subcommttee
03/ 28/ 07 (H) M NUTE( RES)

05/ 01/ 07 (H RES AT 9: 00 AM BARNES 124

05/ 01/ 07 (H) Subconmmi ttee Meeti ng

05/ 02/ 07 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR KI M ELTON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 121, as the sponsor.

BRYCE BROCKWAY, Vice President of Operations

Crui se \West

Seattl e, Washi ngton

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During testinony on SB 121, answered
guestions and supported SB 121.

M CHAEL JONES, Director of Marine Operations

Li ndbl ad Expeditions

New Yor k, New York

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During testinony on SB 121, answered
guestions and supported SB 121.

LYNN TOM CH KENT, Director

Di vi sion of Water

Departnment of Environnental Conservation (DEC)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of SB 121, responded to
guestions and provi ded conments.

REPRESENTATI VE KURT OLSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered a statenent as the sponsor of HB
128.

KONRAD JACKSOQN, St aff

to Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 128, responded to
guestions on behalf of the bill sponsor, Representative d son.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- May 2, 2007



JONATHAN | VERSEN, Director

Anchorage O fice

Tax Divi sion

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 128, responded to
guestions and provi ded conments.

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director

Central Ofice

Division of Gl & Gas

Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 128, responded to
guestions and provi ded conments.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:11:06 PM Represent ati ves
Gatto, Johnson, Seaton, Roses, Guttenberg, Edgnon, and Kawasaki
were present at the call to order. Representative WIson

arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

SB 121-CRU SE SHI P DI SCHARCGE & | NFO

1:11: 19 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would
be CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 121(L& ), "An Act relating to
di scharge from small comercial passenger vessels; relating to
i nformati on-gat hering requi renents for smal | comer ci al
passenger vessels; providing for an effective date by repealing
the del ayed effective date found in sec. 16, ch. 153, SLA 2004,
and providing for an effective date.”

1:11: 47 PM

SENATOR KIM ELTON, Al aska State Legislature, said that SB 121
restores the alternate conpliance discharge protocols that were
passed unani nously by the House and the Senate with HB 522, in

2004. He explained that this is the alternate conpliance for
small cruise ships because the smaller size of the ships
precludes the sane protocols as the larger cruise ships. The

cruise ship ballot initiative inadvertently repealed the section
that had been changed by HB 522. He enphasized that this is not
the fault of the initiative sponsors.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- May 2, 2007



1:13: 35 PM
CO CHAI R GATTO asked for a definition of cruise ships.

SENATOR ELTON clarified that the definition in the bill is for
smal |l cruise ships. He added that the sponsors of the cruise
ship ballot initiative support this bill. He noted that, as in
HB 522, the provisions for the alternative conpliance protocols
for small cruise ships will be repealed on January 1, 2016, with
t he assunption that technology will have inproved.

CO CHAI R GATTO noted that the nenbers' packets include a letter
in support of SB 121 from Joseph Celdhof, co-sponsor of the
cruise ship ballot initiative, dated March 16, 2007

1:15:40 PM

BRYCE BROCKWAY, Vice President of Operations, Cruise West,
explained that Cruise West is a small, famly owned cruise ship
operator, founded by an Al askan. He expressed his belief that
Departnent of Environnmental Conservation (DEC) supports this
bill and the best nanagenment practices of Cruise Wst.

CO- CHAIR GATTO noted that the Cruise West ship capacity is 78-
138 passengers and he asked if there is a defined |imt for the
smal | ship category.

MR. BROCKWAY offered his belief that a small cruise ship is
defined as up to 249 passengers on board.

1:17: 22 PM

M CHAEL  JONES, Director of Marine  Operations, Li ndbl ad
Expedi ti ons, reported that Li ndbl ad Expeditions has been
operating two small 62 passenger vessels in Southeast Al aska
since 1989. He expressed his support for SB 121.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked about the disposal system for the
accurrul at ed waste water on board the ship.

MR. JONES explained that the ships have blackwater tanks and
graywater tanks and that each is treated by a Coast GQuard
approved marine sanitation device.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the ship passengers disenbark while in
port.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- May 2, 2007



MR. JONES replied that passengers are offered tours in Sitka,
Juneau, and Petersburg.

1:19: 34 PM

COCHAIR GATTO asked if the graywater 1is discharged at a
dockside facility or at sea.

MR. JONES responded that the graywater is discharged at sea per
t he DEC approved best nmanagenent practices.

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked for a description of the blackwater
treat ment.

MR. JONES expl ained that the systemis manufactured by Omi pure,
an electronic cell that includes treatnent with chlorine. The
system i ncl udes punps, settling systens, and oxidization so that
t he bl ackwater can be discharged after treatnent.

CO CHAI R GATTO asked if the discharge contains chlorine.

MR. JONES responded that the dechlorination system renoves
chlorine to the acceptabl e standards.

1:21:12 PM

LYNN TOM CH KENT, Director, Dy vision of Wter, Departnent of
Envi ronnental Conservation (DEC), clarified that the DEC has not
taken a formal position on SB 121.

CO CHAIR GATTO asked if the DEC has | ooked at the bill

MS. KENT replied that SB 121 does exactly as the sponsor states
which is to reinstate provisions that the Legislature has
passed.

SENATOR ELTON, in response to an earlier question, clarified
that small cruise ships are defined as having overnight
accomodati ons for 249 or fewer passengers.

1: 22: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Kent to clarify that page 2,
line 2, refers only to the discharge of donestic wastewater

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- May 2, 2007



VB. KENT explained that this includes other wastewater
di scharges from comerci al passenger vessels.

REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON asked for a definition of "ot her
wast ewat er . "

M5. KENT replied that other wastewater includes ballast and
bil ge water. She reported that a permt is required for the
wast ewat er di scharge, but this permt requirenent only pertains
to the |l arge comercial passenger vessels.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is trying to get a better
understanding for the breadth of the wastewater that this bil
will allow a small vessel to discharge.

M5. KENT requested the opportunity to review the bill.
1:24:59 PM

SENATOR ELTON expl ained that Section 2 references existing |aw,
and this bill is not changing existing law. He noted that there
are current definitions for graywater and other wastewater in
statute.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he is asking for assurance from
DEC that, as SB 121 is going to exenpt small conmercia
passenger vessels from the current regulations, the alternative
regul ations don't allow the managenent of oily bilge water and
donmestic wastewater in the sane way.

1:26:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON noted that page 2, line 2, refers to "into
the nmarine waters" and he comrented that another bill refers to
"waters of the United States.” He asked if there is any

di f ference.

SENATOR ELTON replied that a change in wording is possible, but
as these vessels only operate in marine waters, a change may not
be necessary.

CHAIR GATTO asked if the commercial passenger vessels ever go
into fresh water.

SENATOR ELTON responded that this question is best answered by a

ship captain, though he allowed that the small passenger vessels
will go into estuaries.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- May 2, 2007



1: 28: 47 PM

MS. KENT, in response to Representative Seaton, said that she is
not able to determ ne whether the best managenent practices plan
that is «currently in place covers [discharge] other than
donmestic wastewater discharge from the vessels. She expl ai ned
that Section 3 reinstates the sanme conditions that were
i nadvertently repealed by the cruise ship ballot initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that this answers his earlier
guesti on.

1: 29: 27 PM
CO- CHAI R GATTO cl osed public testinony.

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON voiced his concern with naking changes to
initiatives. He expressed his desire for the consistency to
either allow or disallow changes to initiatives, but not to
respond to every whim for an issue. He stated that |egislators
make inportant policy decisions on the best course of action for
the state, and he requested the sane respect from initiative
witers to not just anmend statutes for their own needs. He
commented that the commttee process of hearing and vetting is
not available for initiatives. He encouraged future initiative
witers to "get it right."

1:31: 47 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO noted that [HB 522} previously passed both the
House and the Senate unani nously.

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI pointed out that the nmenorandum from
Al pheus Bullard, Dvision of Legal and Research Services, dated
March 26, 2007, affirns that CSSB 121 is constitutional.

1:32: 20 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON expressed his belief that although the | egal
opinions on initiatives allow an entitlenent for change, it does
not al ways make it acceptable.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated that he supports this bill, but he

voiced his concern that "people seem to pick and choose when
they want to break away froman initiative and when they don't."

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- May 2, 2007



1: 34: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  GUTTENBERG sai d, as a sponsor of t hree
initiatives, that amending initiatives is taken very seriously.

He stated his concern that amendnents can mask revisions. He
expl ained that he reviews an initiative anendnment to ensure that
the spirit of the original initiative is retained. He noted

that this is the first time he has seen the need for a change
that is truly beyond the scope of predication. He expressed his
belief that the Alaska State Constitution provides for
initiative amendnents simlar to SB 121.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSSB 121(L&C) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 121(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Resources Standing Comm ttee.

HB 128-O L & GAS PRODUCTI ON TAX: EXPENDI TURES

1: 37:14 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 128, "An Act relating to allowable |ease
expenditures for the purpose of determning the production tax
value of oil and gas for the purposes of the oil and gas
production tax; and providing for an effective date.” [ Bef ore
the conmttee was CSHB 128((0O&35, as anended at the March 23,
2007, hearing.]

CO CHAIR GATTO explained that HB 128 is now back from the
subcomm tt ee. He stated that the bill has had npbre than six
hours of discussion before the committee, so it is as vetted as
can be expect ed. He said that there are sone anendnents to be
i nt roduced.

1: 38: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KURT COLSON, Al aska State Legislature, said that
the bill addresses who should pay for bad nmintenance, the
citizens of Alaska or the responsible party. He said that every
day there is nore information about the flaws in British
Petroleum s North Sl ope [maintenance] program He said that he
is not proud of this bill, but that he believes init.

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON said that support of HB 128 nmkes the
statenent that proper nmmintenance is rewarded and that i nproper

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- May 2, 2007



mai nt enance is not. He wurged support for HB 128, and he
deferred questions to his aide, Konrad Jackson.

1:39: 57 PM

KONRAD JACKSON, Staff to Representative Kurt O son, Alaska State
Legislature, offered to explain the three anendnents that he is
going to introduce.

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked to first discuss a news release and an e-
mai | .

1: 40: 27 PM
CO-CHAIR GATTO read the e-manil from John Todd, dated 6/4/99:

Due to budgetary constraints, the decision has been
made to discontinue the PW inhibitor (EC 1081A)
currently being injected at GC 2 and GC 3.

CO CHAIR GATTO said that he assunes GC to nmean Gathering Center.
He then read froma letter by U S. Representative John D ngell,
Chairman of the House Conmittee on Energy and Commerce, dated
May 2, 2007:

W know that BP proceeded with cost cutting neasures
that nmay have conpromised pipeline safety while
earning $22 billion in profits, but what we don't know
i s why.

These docunents appear to show a severe cost cutting
environment with respect to corrosion mtigation in
t he Prudhoe Bay field.

CO-CHAIR GATTO said that he wants this on the record as
docunents that he has received.

1:42:17 PM

MR. JACKSON replied that Senator Wagoner distributed the e-nail
to the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee on April 20, 2007 and
that the letter was distributed earlier today [May 2, 2007],
al so by Senator \Wagoner.

1:42: 55 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 10- May 2, 2007



COCHAIR GATTO clarified t hat t he letter from US
Representative Dingell was released today and he asked the
coommittee if they had any coments on the docunents.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said that this e-mail indicates there is
proof of negligence. He enphasized that he does not support
retroactively changing | anguage to address negligence. He will
support the bill if it is witten to be effective from this day
forward

1:45:15 PM

JONATHAN | VERSEN, Director, Anchorage Ofice, Tax Division,
Departnent of Revenue (DOR), said that the retroactivity is fine
from a taxation standpoint. He stated that the Petroleum
Systens Integrity Ofice (PSIO wll be a good guide for
determining a definition for proper maintenance. He stated that
the amendnments passed today wll provide different tools and
organi zations to use and look at for their standards, in order
to get a better understanding of retroactivity.

1:47: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for clarification that by including
the retroactivity section, this will make it easier to define
negligence in the past or in the future.

MR. | VERSEN expl ai ned that the future benefit will be review of
the standards set up by the PSIO He said that | ooking backward
must rely on other guidelines and standards, which may not be as
cl ear.

1: 47: 44 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO expressed his belief that this is a one-tinme bil
to address a past issue. He allowed that the PSIO will address
future issues.

MR. | VERSEN replied that this is not a one-tine bill, it is a
| aw of general application that will have future inpact. In the
future, there is the benefit of the PSIO determning the
mai nt enance pl ans.

1: 48: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that the PSIO will establish a set
of regul ati ons.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- May 2, 2007



MR. | VERSEN agr eed.
1:48: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renmarked that the PSIO will develop a
series of regulations. He offered his understanding that during

an audit a Jlarge expenditure wll flag possible inproper
mai nt enance. He asked how a |arge expenditure that has not
violated any regulations will be treated if it appears that

there is inproper maintenance.

MR. |IVERSEN said that the audit process is going to be the
primary neans of recognition. He allowed that the news systens
will also be a neans of nonitoring possible infractions. He
said that it is necessary to be able to ask the right questions
to determ ne upstream costs. He said that DOR will review the
claims and consult with Department of Natural Resources (DNR),
to determine the proper questions to ask. He noted that DNR
w || decide whether sonmething is a good oil field practice.

1:51:49 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed that DOR has the statutory authority
to challenge any expense that 1is deemed to be inproper

mai nt enance.

MR. | VERSEN explained that this is not just a matter of |ooking

at a large cost, but it is the context of that cost. He stated
that DOR does not have the personnel to investigate every cost
in an audit, so it wll be the auditor's discretion to determ ne

what is not in conpliance.
1:53: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how DOR will be able to determ ne
whether a cost in the field is due to inproper maintenance. He
cited earlier testinmony stating that the cost anmbunt will be a
main criterion

MR. | VERSEN agreed. He explained that all 19 itenms in Section 1

of the bill wll be reviewed. He allowed that gross negligence
will be reviewed even though it is not a specific item He said
that litigation nmay reveal inproper maintenance or gross

negligence that is not revealed in an audit.

1: 56: 23 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- May 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how i nproper maintenance, which may

not be sinple or gross negligence, will be treated under the
bill.

MR. | VERSEN stated that an issue wll be noted for later review
during the audit cycle and then DNR will determne if it is

i mproperly maintai ned.
1:57:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked when the PSIO regulations wll be
avai | abl e.

MR. | VERSEN responded that is best be answered by DNR
1:58:23 PM

KEVI N BANKS, Acting Director, Central Ofice, Dvision of Gl &
Gas, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), said that the PSIO

will be working on the regulations and coordinating this wth
ot her partici pating agenci es, i ncl udi ng Depar t ment of
Envi r onnment al Conservation (DEC) and Alaska Ql and Gas
Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC). He related that nuch of the
PSIO authority will originate with the [oil] |ease contract, and
he expressed that the challenge will be to define in statute the

regul ations which originate in the |ease contract, yet not
i npair the contract.

2:00: 11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked about the procedure should soneone
violate the PSI O regul ati ons.

MR. BANKS said that the regulations governing the PSIO wll
focus on systens integrity, and the physical nmaintenance of

records related to conpany plans for quality assurance. He
explained that DNR will focus on violations of regulations or
mai nt enance per the |ease contract. He nmentioned that DOR wi |

focus on the question of deductibility. He reported that if DOR
is concerned that costs have been deducted with relation to a
failure of maintenance, they will consult wwth DNR and PSI O who
will go to the records and opine whether it was inproper
mai nt enance.

2:02: 28 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 13- May 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that a conmpany can be
followng the regulations for pipeline integrity and can still
fall under the inproper maintenance category.

MR. BANKS replied that if an operator neets the rules and
denonstrates that they have net the quality assurance
regul ations, then this is evidence of proper naintenance. | f
this is the case, DNRwi Il tell DOR that the cost is deductible.

2:04: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if it is willful msconduct when a
conpany does not follow the regul ations.

MR. BANKS responded that this is a | egal question.
2:05:23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 3, lines 21-22:

Del et e " Al aska Ql and Gas Conservati on
Conm ssi on"

Insert "person in the Departnent of Natura
Resources who is the lead person for exercising

oversight over the nmaintenance of oil and gas
facilities, equi pnent , and infrastructure in the
state"

CO CHAI R JOHNSON obj ect ed.
2:05: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that this anmendnent is to ensure the
ri ght people are in the discussion.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from2:05:55 PMto 2:17:25 PM

2:17:26 PM
CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked for the sponsor to explain Anmendnment 1.
MR. JACKSON explained that this sanme anendnent was added to SB

80 (the Senate Version of HB 128). He said that Anmendnent 1
will include the PSIO coordinator in the consultation group

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- May 2, 2007



MR. JACKSON rel ayed that an e-mail from John Norman, Chairman of
AOGCC, dated April 25, 2007, stating support for the anendnent
is in the nenbers' packets. He nentioned that Adm nistrative
Order 234 to authorize the PSIO is also included.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON wi t hdrew hi s objection.

There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.

2:19: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 2,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

Add a new paragraph (4) to AS 43.55.165(j)):

(4) "inproper nmaintenance" is defined as any
mai nt enance that is not consistent with good oil field
practice.

Add a new paragraph (5) to AS 43.55.165()):

(5) "good oil field practice" is defined as a
practice that is generally accepted to be good, safe
and efficient in carrying out oil field operations,
i ncl udi ng, but is not I|imted to, the design,
construction, testing, operating, and maintaining of
production, processing and transportation facilities
and equi pnent, consistent with standards such as the
Anmerican Petroleum Institute (APlI) or Anmerican Society
for Testing and Materials (ASTM, federal regul ations,
mai nt enance prograns consistent wth the program
requi renents set forth by the person in the Departnent
of Natural Resources who is the lead person for
exercising oversight over the maintenance of oil and
gas facilities, equipnent, and infrastructure in the
state, or ot her applicable standards for t he
production, processing and transportation of oil, gas,
produced wat er, and other fl uids.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON obj ect ed.

2:19: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that as design,
construction, testing, and operating are included in the

definition of "good oil field practice", are these also included
in the definition of "inproper naintenance."”

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -15- May 2, 2007



MR. JACKSON explained that Conceptual Anendnent 2 is cobbled
together from a variety of sources, and that Legislative Lega
and Research Services has not yet reviewed it. He suggested
that "design® mght not be included in the definition of
"inproper maintenance" and that sone other terns may need to be
added.

2:21: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anendnent 1 to Conceptua
Amendnent 2, as foll ows:

Li ne 8:
Delete ",but is not I|imted to, the design,
construction, testing, operating, and"

MR. JACKSON expressed his concern with elimnating the words
"but is not limted to". He reconmended that the definition
shoul d not be so focused to exclude any new advances.

2:22:34 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO relayed that M. Bullock from Legislative Lega
and Research Services has previously stated that "but is not
l[imted to" is not necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON expressed her belief that "testing" and
"operating"” should remain in Arendnent 2.

2:23:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if "nmaintenance" is expanded to now
include operations of the pipeline, or if "maintenance" neans
mai nt ai ni ng production, processing and transportation facilities
and equi prent .

MR.  JACKSON responded that the only reason "operating" is
included in the definition is that part of the operation would
be the testing, or pigging, of the line.

2:24: 30 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked where the definition derived from

MR,  JACKSON described the definition as an attenpt to be
reasonably broad and include a reference to the PSIQO

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 16- May 2, 2007



CO CHAI R GATTO asked if M. Jackson drafted Amendnent 2.

MR JACKSON sai d that he did.

2:25:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG sai d that he supports maintaining "not
l[imted to" as this will cover aspects that the PSIO m ght not

cover in the earlier referenced anal ysis.

CO- CHAIR GATTO objected to Amendnent 1 to Conceptual Amendnent
2.

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Seaton, Roses, and
Johnson voted in favor of Amendnent 1 to Conceptual Amendnent 2.
Representati ves Guttenberg, Edgnon, Kawasaki, WIson, and Gatto
voted against it. Therefore, the Amendnment 1 to Conceptual
Amendrent 2 failed by a vote of 3-5.

2:28:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to adopt Anendnent 2 to Concept ual
Amendrent 2, as foll ows:

Li ne 8:
Del ete "the design, construction,”
CO- CHAI R GATTO obj ect ed.
2:29:30 PM
CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked for an expl anati on.

CO- CHAIR GATTO explained that he has another anendnent he is
going to offer.

[ The conmittee treated Co-Chair Gatto's objection as if it was
wi t hdrawn. |

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Roses, Cuttenberg,
Edgnon, Kawasaki, W Ison, Seaton, Johnson voted in favor of
Amendrment 2 to Conceptual Anendnent 2. Representative Gatto
voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent 2 to Conceptual

Amendnent 2 passed by a vote of 7-1.

2:32: 11 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- May 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Conceptual Amendnent 2 as anended
is still answering the sponsor intent.

MR. JACKSON responded that not followng those good, safe and
efficient practices is "inproper naintenance."

2:32: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if not followng good, safe and
efficient testing and operation is defined as "inproper
mai nt enance. "

MR. JACKSON agreed that "inproper maintenance" is defined by
going to the definition, and if the nmintenance is not
consistent with testing and operating, and the "good oil field
practice" has not been followed, there is inproper nmaintenance.

2:34: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that if a [pipe]line is
i nproperly operated, is that defined as inproper maintenance, or
is inmproper maintenance only if some work is not done on the

[ pi pe]line.

MR. JACKSON said that if the [operators] are not operating
properly as recognized by the Anerican Petroleum Institute (API)
or the Anmerican Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM, then
this is "inproper maintenance."

2: 35:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed his desire to define the
paraneters of the definition. He asked if an inproper
operation, for exanple too much pressure in an oil pipeline, is
al so defined as "inproper maintenance."

MR. JACKSON allowed that M. Banks mght be best suited to
answer .

2:37: 00 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO offered that intentional inproper operation would
be different than "inproper maintenance."

MR. BANKS agreed with Chair Gatto. | f soneone is intentionally
operating inproperly, this is a gross negligence violation. | f

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- May 2, 2007



equi pnent fails because it is not properly naintained, the
standards of APl and ASTM or any qualified assurance plan wl
di ctate i nproper nmaintenance.

2:38: 36 PM

COCHAIR GATTO noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnment 3 to
Conceptual Amendnent 2, as follows:

Li ne 8:
Del ete " operating, and maintaining”
Add "operation, and mai ntenance"

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON advised that further tenses in the
anmendnent will al so need to be adj ust ed.

There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 3 to Conceptua
Amendrent 2 was passed.

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON withdrew his objection to Conceptual Amendnent
2.

There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 2 as anended was
passed.

2:40:21 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO brought attention to the anmendnment | abeled 25-
LS0561\ K. 2, Bull ock, 3/21/07, and | abeled this as Anendment 3.

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI noved to adopt Anmendnent 3, which read:

Page 4, lines 9 - 10:

Delete "lease expenditures that may not be
deduct ed”

Insert "costs that may not be treated as |ease
expenditures or claimed as a credit based on costs
that may not be cl ainmed as | ease expenditures”

Page 4, line 10:
Del ete "AS 43.55.165(e), as anended”
I nsert "AS 43.55.165(e)(19), as enacted"

Page 4, line 13, follow ng "AS 43.55.020(a)":
I nsert "before the effective date of this Act”

Page 4, line 15:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- May 2, 2007



Delete "lease expenditures that may not be
deduct ed”

Insert "costs that may not be treated as |ease
expenditures or attributable to a credit based on
costs that may not be clainmed as | ease expenditures”

Del ete "AS 43.55.165(e) as anmended”

I nsert "AS 43.55.165(e)(19), as enacted"

Page 4, following line 17:
I nsert a new subsection to read:

"(c) Interest on an additional anmount of tax due
under (a) of this section or on the anount of the
under paynent of an installnment wunder (b) of this
section does not begin to accrue until 90 days after
the effective date of this Act."

CO CHAI R GATTO obj ect ed.
CO- CHAI R JOHNSON obj ect ed.
2:41: 30 PM

MR. JACKSON explained that Amendnent 3 is drafted by M. Don
Bul l ock, Division of Legal and Research Services, and is a
technical change for the transitional |anguage on Page 4 of HB
128. He noted that a nenorandum from M. Bullock, Division of
Legal and Research Services, dated April 4, 2007, is also
included in the nenbers' packets. He pointed out that page 3 of
the nmenorandum explains that the anendnent changes are
"technical and not substantive corrections to the bill."

CO CHAI R GATTO poi nted out that the referenced anmendnent on page
3 of the menorandum is |abeled M 2.

MR. JACKSON expl ained that the anmendnent |abeled K 2, currently
in front of the commttee, is identical to an earlier Senate
bill amendrment |abeled M 2. He reported that he attached this
earlier menmorandum from M. Bullock that explains anendnment M 2,
as it is the identical explanation for amendnent K 2.

2:42:42 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO noted that M. Bullock is essentially saying "not
substantive."

MR. JACKSON clarified that M. Bullock's nmenorandumis referring
to page 1 of the amendnent, not page 1 of the bill.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 20- May 2, 2007



2:44: 15 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO wi t hdrew hi s objection.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON mai nt ai ned his objection

2:44:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked for the effective date of the bill.

MR. JACKSON responded that page 4, line 20, of the bill states
the effective date to be retroactive to April 1, 2006.

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked if the Senate version of the bill also
included retroactivity.

MR. JACKSON sai d yes.

2:45: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked to clarify that the anmendnment wll
now state "comon negligence” instead of "gross negligence,”
will be retroactive to April 1, 2006, and wll not charge

interest until July 1, 2006.

MR. JACKSON explained that he m sspoke, and the effective date
is stated on page 4, line 21 of the bill, which is 90 days after
the bill passes.

2:46: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked to clarify that retroactivity is not
being determ ned on the noney due, but on the determ nation of
negl i gence.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON expressed his belief that the effective date is
April 1, 2006, and that the interest begins to accrue 90 days
| at er.

2:47: 08 PM
MR. | VERSEN explained that the 90-day provision is coordinated
with transition provisions of the PPT to allow conpanies tine to

adjust to the bill. He said that prior to 2007 all the paynents
were made under the Economic Limt Factor (ELF). The paynents

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -21- May 2, 2007



are not accruing interest wunder the Production Profits Tax
(PPT).

CO CHAI R JOHNSON asked when the interest will start accruing if
this bill passes.

MR. | VERSEN replied that interest will begin 90 days after the
bill passes.

2:49: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that the retroactive
date is only for Section 1 of the bill.

CO CHAI R GATTO agreed with Representative Seaton
2:50: 23 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON wi t hdrew his objection to Arendnent 3.
There being no objection, Arendnent 3 was passed.

CO- CHAIR GATTO clarified that HB 128 requires five votes to
report it fromthe commttee.

2:50: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 4, as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 3:

Insert "(8) costs incurred as a result of an
action or inaction in violation of regulations or
procedures adopted by the pipeline safety integrity
organi zati on or other appropriate agency."

Renunber accordingly.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that it is unclear whether a
violation of the PSIO regulations wll fall wunder wllfu
m sconduct . He expressed his desire for regulations that
clarify both operations and the penalties for violation of the
regul ati ons.
2:53:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON obj ected to Conceptual Amendnment 4.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -22- May 2, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rest ated Conceptual Amendnent 4.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON renoved her objection.

There bei ng no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 4 was passed.
2:54: 28 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON noved to adopt Anmendment 5, as foll ows:

Page 4, line 20:
Delete all material

CO- CHAI R GATTO obj ect ed.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON expl ained that he is deleting the retroactivity
cl ause.

2:55: 00 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for clarification of the intent.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON expl ained that the regulations to be drafted by

DOR and PSIOw Il still allow collection of any funds.

2:56:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said that deductions are not allowed for
negl i gence. This bill lowers the burden of proof for
negl i gence. He enphasized that he has a serious problem with

"reactive" legislation as well as "retroactivity," as he doesn't
support a change to the rules after the fact.

A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Roses, WIson, and
Johnson voted in favor of Amendnent 5. Represent ati ves
Guttenberg, Edgnon, Kawasaki, Seaton, and Gatto voted against
it. Therefore, Amendnent 5 failed by a vote of 3-5.

2:59:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that PPT has two goals: encourage
investment and raise nore noney for the state. He said that
encouraging investnment requires certainty on investnent, but
that this bill allows a lot of risk, as no standard has been
set. He reported that the definition of "inproper maintenance"

has not been tested in court and is not even contained in |aw

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 23- May 2, 2007



He pointed out that it does not have to include negligence. He
enphasi zed that changing the standard for the entire industry
across Alaska, and renoving the certainty for investnent that is
so critical for the PPT, goes against his feelings.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON agreed with Representative Seaton.

3:02: 23 PM

CO CHAIR JOHNSON offered a synopsis of the subcommttee report.
He said that there is a recommendation for this bill to go to
House Judiciary Standing Commttee because there are |egal
i ssues invol ved. He said that retroactivity is a concern, but
t he amendnents solve sone of those issues. He said that he

supports the concept, but he offered his belief that a better
job needs to be done with the definitions. He stressed that he
does not want to sacrifice quality legislation for expediency.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said that the concern of t he
legislature is reflected by the nunber of co-sponsors on the

bill. He ascertained that the oil industry makes every deci sion
based on mexim zing returns, and that no matter what is done,
the oil industry will take the state to court. He expressed his

belief that the commttee owes it to the people of the state to
nmove this bill fromcommttee.

3:06: 02 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO offered his opinion, summarizing that the bill
addresses the responsibility to nonitor what is defined as a
deduction agai nst revenue, in order to protect the net tax.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Quttenberg, Edgnon,
Kawasaki , and Gatto voted in favor of CSHB 128( &G .
Representatives WIson, Seaton, Roses and Johnson voted agai nst
it. Therefore, CSHB 128(0&(5 failed to be reported out of the
House Resources Standing Comrittee by a vote of 4-4.

3:07:32 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO announced that the commttee may |ook at the
subconm ttee report and hear the bill again.

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON said that this bill has potential, but it needs
some work, and he asked to hear the bill again.

3:08:12 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 24- May 2, 2007



CO-CHAIR GATTO asked if Co-Chair Johnson wll reconsider his
vote if there is a referral to House Judiciary Standing
Commi tt ee.

CO-CHAIR JOHNSON said that he will reconsider his vote.
REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he will reconsider his vote, as well.
3:09: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG npbved to rescind the commttee's
action on CSHB 128( 0&G).

CO CHAIR JOHNSON objected and allowed that the Speaker of the
House is the only person who can change the conmttee assignnment
for the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG w thdrew his nmpotion to rescind the
vot e.

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 3:10 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 25- May 2, 2007



